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On May 18, 2015, Pattern Energy Group Inc. (“Pattern Energy”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the “Original Form 8-K”) reporting that on May 15,
2015, Pattern Energy consummated the purchase of 100% of the membership interests in each of Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC (“Lost Creek Finco”), a
Delaware limited liability company, and Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC (“Lincoln County Holdco”), a Delaware limited liability company. This
Form 8-K/A amends the Original Form 8-K to include the historical consolidated financial statements of each of Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County
Holdco and the pro forma financial information required by Items 9.01(a) and 9.01(b) of Form 8-K that were excluded from the Original Form 8-K in reliance
on the instructions to such items.
Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
a.

Financial statements of businesses acquired.

The audited consolidated balance sheets of Lost Creek Finco and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive (loss) income, changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2015 are
filed herewith as Exhibit 99.1.
The audited consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln County Holdco and its subsidiary as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
March 31, 2015 are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.2.
The consent of KPMG LLP, the independent auditors for Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County Holdco, is attached as Exhibit 23.1.
b.

Pro forma financial information.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements of Pattern Energy, Lost Creek Finco, and Lincoln County Holdco for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2014 and as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2015 are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.3.
d.

Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

Description

23.1

Consent of KPMG LLP, the independent auditors for Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County Holdco

99.1

Audited consolidated balance sheets of Lost Creek Finco and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive (loss) income, changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended March 31, 2015

99.2

Audited consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln County Holdco and its subsidiary as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three year period ended March 31, 2015

99.3

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements of Pattern Energy, Lost Creek Finco, and Lincoln County Holdco for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2014 and as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2015

SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Pattern Energy Group Inc. has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
Dated: July 13, 2015
PATTERN ENERGY GROUP INC.
By: /s/ Kim H. Liou
Name: Kim H. Liou
Title: Secretary

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Auditors
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-199217) and Form S-8 (File No. 333-191641) of
Pattern Energy Group Inc. of our reports dated July 10, 2015, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC
and its subsidiary as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in member’s
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended March 31, 2015, and with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Lost Creek
Wind Finco, LLC and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive (loss) income,
changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2015, which reports appear in the Form 8-K/A of
Pattern Energy Group Inc. dated July 13, 2015.
Our report on the consolidated financial statements of Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC and subsidiary, dated July 10, 2015 contains an emphasis
of matter paragraph that states that as discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, on May 15, 2015, all of the Company’s membership
interests were sold to Pattern US Finance Company LLC. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Our report on the consolidated financial statements of Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC and subsidiaries, dated July 10, 2015 contains an emphasis of matter
paragraph that states that as discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, on May 15, 2015, all of the Company’s membership interests were
sold to Pattern US Finance Company LLC. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
/s/ KPMG LLP
St. Louis, Missouri
July 10, 2015

Exhibit 99.1
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Member
Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC:
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive (loss) income, changes in member’s equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2015, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lost Creek Wind Finco,
LLC and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended March 31, 2015, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, on May 15, 2015, all of the Company’s membership interests were sold to Pattern US
Finance Company LLC. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
/s/ KPMG LLP
St. Louis, Missouri
July 10, 2015
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LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(In thousands)
2015

2014

Assets
Current assets:
Trade accounts receivable
Other current assets and prepaid expenses
Restricted cash
Total current assets
Property, plant, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $61,043 and $48,654 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $7,688 and $6,685 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
Total assets
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current maturity of long-term debt
Current portion of deferred income from government grant
Current maturities of derivatives and other long-term liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Deferred income from government grant, less current portion
Derivatives and other long-term liabilities, less current portion
Total liabilities
Equity:
Capital and accumulated income
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

2,576
922
15,254
18,752

3

3,585
350
17,016
20,951

294,904
5,224
$318,880

307,318
6,228
$334,497

$

$

617
766
7,462
3,590
6,292
18,727
107,324
86,745
31,704
244,500

93,098
(18,718)
74,380
$318,880

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

150
907
7,665
3,590
6,765
19,077
114,787
90,335
32,043
256,242

92,176
(13,921)
78,255
$334,497

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Revenues
Cost of revenue:
Project expense
Depreciation and accretion
Amortization of government grant deferred income
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Other income
Benefits from allocated tax attributes
Total other expense
Net income
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
4

2015

2014

2013

$ 29,387

$ 31,463

$ 31,505

7,570
12,526
(3,590)
16,506
12,881

6,930
12,519
(3,590)
15,859
15,604

6,590
12,528
(3,590)
15,528
15,977

159
159
12,722

116
116
15,488

81
81
15,896

(13,114)
2
2,731
(10,381)
$ 2,341

(14,010)
2
741
(13,267)
$ 2,221

(16,887)
—
5,588
(11,299)
$ 4,597

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Net income
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Effective portion of change in fair market value of derivatives
Reclassifications to net income
Total other comprehensive (loss) income
Total comprehensive (loss) income
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2015

2014

2013

$ 2,341

$ 2,221

$ 4,597

(8,954)
(4,157)
(4,797)
$(2,456)

2,981
(4,350)
7,331
$ 9,552

(5,225)
(4,143)
(1,082)
$ 3,515

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Member’s Equity
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Balance at April 1, 2012
Capital distributions
Net income
Other Comprehensive Loss
Balance at March 31, 2013
Capital distributions
Net income
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at March 31, 2014
Capital distributions
Net income
Other Comprehensive Loss
Balance at March 31, 2015

Capital and
Accumulated
Income

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Total Member’s
Equity

$

$

$

$

$

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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89,308
(2,568)
4,597
—
91,337
(1,382)
2,221
—
92,176
(1,419)
2,341
—
93,098

$

$

$

(20,170)
—
—
(1,082)
(21,252)
—
—
7,331
(13,921)
—
—
(4,797)
(18,718)

$

$

$

69,138
(2,568)
4,597
(1,082)
70,085
(1,382)
2,221
7,331
78,255
(1,419)
2,341
(4,797)
74,380

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)
2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and accretion
Noncash interest expense
Noncash interest on liability for the equity capital contributions
Amortization of deferred income
Benefits from allocated tax attributes
Amortization of noncash government grant income
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Trade accounts receivable
Restricted cash
Trade accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on term note
Payments to subsidiary Class A investors
Distributions to Wind Capital Ventures, LLC and affiliates
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 2,341

2014

2013

2,221

4,597

12,526
1,016
4,518
(73)
(2,731)
(3,590)

12,519
794
4,678
(294)
(741)
(3,590)

12,528
1,672
6,210
(495)
(5,588)
(3,590)

1,009
1,762
342
(918)
16,202

(545)
197
94
416
15,749

552
6
(7)
597
16,482

(14)
(14)
(7,666)
(7,103)
(1,419)
(16,188)
—
—
$
—

—
—
(7,438)
(6,929)
(1,382)
(15,749)
—
—
—

(46)
(46)
(7,090)
(6,844)
(2,568)
(16,502)
(66)
66
—

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(1)

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Description of Business
Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (herein referred to as LC Finco as a stand-alone entity and the Company or
Finco as the consolidated entity, including subsidiaries) was formed on April 22, 2009 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Wind Capital Group,
LLC (herein referred to as WCG), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Wind Capital Ventures, LLC. Wind Capital Ventures, LLC (herein
referred to as WCV) was formed on April 14, 2008 by NTR US Wind, Inc. (herein referred to as NTR US), which is 100% indirectly owned by
NTR plc.
Finco is a holding company with two subsidiaries, Lost Creek Wind Holdco, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (herein referred to as
Holdco) and Lost Creek Wind, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (herein referred to as LC Wind or Lost Creek). Lost Creek is a wind
energy owner/operator in the United States with its current sole asset, the Lost Creek wind project, located in northwest Missouri (herein referred
to as the Wind Project). The Wind Project commenced commercial operations on May 5, 2010.
Refer to Note 14, Subsequent Events, for changes in ownership structure subsequent to the balance sheet date.

(b)

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the useful lives of fixed assets; valuation
of derivatives; estimates of future cash expenditures for asset retirement obligations; and recoverability of long-lived assets. The current
economic environment has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in those estimates and assumptions.

(c)

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
They include the results of the Company’s two wholly owned subsidiaries with all significant intercompany balances and transactions
eliminated.

(d)

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash consists of all cash balances and highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less. All cash balances are
restricted as to withdrawal or usage under the Company’s loan agreement to pay operating expenses or service of debt obligations. Therefore, it
is the Company’s accounting policy to present changes in its restricted cash accounts in its consolidated statement of cash flows within
operating activities.
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(Continued)

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(e)

Revenue Recognition
Upon commercial operations of the Company’s wind farm, the Company recognizes revenue when the customer takes delivery of generated
power and assumes risk of loss, collection of the relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, and the sales price
is fixed or determinable. The point of delivery of generated power is established under contract. Wind energy generated power is metered at the
contracted point of delivery. Rates for kilowatt-hours charged are contractually established. Customers are public utilities with stable revenue
streams from residential and industrial customers.
The Company evaluates its long-term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to determine whether it is a lease. At the inception of the lease or
subsequent modification, the Company determines whether the lease is an operating or capital lease based upon its terms and characteristics. The
Company has determined that its long-term PPA at Lost Creek is an operating lease and in effect recognizes revenue under the Lost Creek PPA to
the extent of power delivered based upon contractual rates. Substantially all of the Company’s wind farm assets are represented by assets under
lease under the PPA.

(f)

Cost of Revenue
The Company’s cost of revenue is comprised of direct costs of operating and maintaining its wind project facilities, including labor, turbine
service arrangements, land lease royalties, depreciation, accretion, property taxes and insurance.

(g)

Trade Accounts Receivable
Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts collected on trade accounts receivable are
included in net cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Trade accounts receivable related primarily to
the purchaser under the PPA with payment terms of approximately 25 days. The Company does not routinely maintain an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses due to the nature of the customers inherent in its accounts receivable portfolio, but as situations arise with slow
payment, consideration for an allowance may be made. The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its
customers.

(h)

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, which requires entities to recognize all derivative instruments as either
assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at their respective fair values. For derivatives designated in hedging relationships, changes in the fair
value are either offset through earnings against the change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or recognized in
member’s equity, to the extent the derivative is effective at offsetting the changes in cash flows being hedged until the hedged item affects
earnings. The fair value of the forecasted cash flows associated with the hedged interest payments of the hedged item is calculated using the
discounted cash flows at prevailing interest rates at the respective balance sheet date being valued. This is performed by creating the
hypothetical derivative that matches the terms of the forecasted cash flows.
(Continued)
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LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
The Company only enters into derivative contracts that it intends to designate as a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash
flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relationships, the Company formally
documents the hedging relationship and its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the
hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk is assessed
prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method used to measure ineffectiveness. The Company also formally assesses, both at
the inception of the hedging relationship and on a quarterly basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging relationships are highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged transactions. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as part of a cash
flow hedging relationship, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of member’s equity and
reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative
representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in current earnings
as interest expense.
(i)

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment includes amounts expended for the development of the commercially viable wind farm site, the purchase of
necessary materials, contract services, and machinery and equipment for the construction of the wind farm. Also included are buildings,
computer and network equipment, furniture, fixtures, and other office equipment necessary to support the operating activities of the wind farm.
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of property, plant, and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use (i.e., capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).
Costs include the labor costs directly related to construction of the wind farm. Capitalization of directly attributable costs ceases when
substantially all the activities are complete for the property, plant, and equipment to be ready for use, even if the asset has not yet been brought
into use. Items of property, plant, and equipment are ready for use (or considered placed in service) when their construction is complete at which
point depreciation will commence.
The cost of property, plant, and equipment includes, where relevant, the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the
site to the extent required, such cost is recognized as an asset retirement obligation (Note 10, Asset Retirement Obligations). Decommissioning
costs include liabilities incurred during the period of use for purposes other than producing the output of its intended use.
(Continued)
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LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, property, plant, and equipment included a cost of $829, which represents the estimate for dismantling and
removing the asset and site restoration for the Wind Project.
Depreciation on plant and equipment is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements
held under lease are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation begins
when the assets are ready for their intended use. Total depreciation for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 was $12,427,
$12,428, and $12,444, respectively, which was recorded in depreciation and accretion expense in the consolidated statements of income.
The estimated economic useful life for the various asset classes are presented in the table below.
Life in years

Wind farm machinery and equipment
Buildings and land improvements
Other machinery and equipment (including meteorological towers)
(j)

5–31
15–20
2–10

Long-lived Assets
In accordance with FASB ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment, long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If circumstances
require a long-lived asset or asset group be tested for possible impairment, the Company would first compare undiscounted cash flows expected
to be generated by that asset or asset group to its carrying value. If the carrying value of the long-lived asset or asset group is not recoverable on
an undiscounted cash flow basis, impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined
through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, quoted market values, and third-party independent appraisals, as
considered necessary.
The Company performed an impairment analysis of property, plant, and equipment as part of its year-end procedures. No impairment of
long-lived assets was indicated as of March 31, 2015 and 2014.

(k)

Deferred Financing Costs
Transaction costs directly attributable to the creation of long-term debt are capitalized. These costs are amortized over the term of the related
debt facility using the effective-interest method.

(l)

Income Taxes
Finco’s direct subsidiary, Holdco, was formed as a limited liability company and from April 22, 2010 forward has been classified as a partnership
for federal and state income tax purposes. All corresponding Holdco income tax benefits or liabilities are passed through to its owners. As a result
(Continued)
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LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
of an amended and restated operating agreement executed during 2010 (Note 3, Capitalization of Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC), substantially all
income tax benefits or liabilities are currently allocated to the Class A Holder of Holdco. Because Finco is a single-member limited liability
company, it is classified as a disregarded entity for federal and state income tax purposes and any remaining income tax benefits or liabilities of
Holdco are reported by its sole owner.
(m)

Trade Accounts Payable
Trade accounts payable comprises balances owed to trade creditors, and are substantially all related to operating activities of the Wind Project at
March 31, 2015 and 2014.

(n)

Other Long-term Liabilities
Other long-term liabilities at March 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of the following:

Fair value of derivative liabilities for cash flow interest rate hedges
Liability for equity capital contribution agreement
Asset retirement obligations
Accrued interest
Other
Total other long-term liabilities
(o)

2015

2014

$16,510
12,898
1,286
1,010
—
$31,704

$12,222
17,578
1,187
999
57
$32,043

Contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies, including environmental remediation costs not within the scope of FASB ASC Subtopic 410-20, Asset
Retirement Obligations and Environmental Obligations – Asset Retirement Obligations, arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and
penalties, and other sources, are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or
remediation can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred.
Accruals for estimated losses from asset retirement obligations generally are recognized no later than completion of the preliminary estimates of
cost prior to the wind farm commencing commercial operations. Such accruals are adjusted as further information develops or circumstances
change. Costs of expected future expenditures for asset retirement obligations are discounted to their present value.

(p)

Fair Value Measurements
The Company adopted the provisions under FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for fair value measurements of
financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. FASB ASC
(Continued)
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LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Where available, fair value is based on observable market prices or derived from such prices. Where
observable prices or inputs are not available, valuation models are applied.
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs to
valuation of these assets or liabilities are as follows:
Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
Level 2—Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability
through correlation with market data at the measurement date and for the duration of the instrument’s anticipated life.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities and which reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuations technique and the risk inherent in the inputs to the
model.
(q)

Cost Allocation
During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, all direct costs related to the Company have been capitalized or expensed based
on the nature of the costs incurred. Although the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of WCV, no general overhead costs incurred by WCV
have been allocated to the Company.

(r)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In April 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-03, “Interest – Imputation of Interest” to simplify the presentation of
debt issuance costs by requiring that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct
deduction from the carrying amount of the debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt
issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU. ASU 2015-03 is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years and should be applied retrospectively. For all other entities, the amendments
are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. Upon transition, an entity is
required to comply with the applicable disclosures for a change in accounting principle. The Company is currently assessing the future impact of
this update on its consolidated financial statements.
(Continued)
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In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, “Consolidation: Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis” to modify the analysis that
companies must perform in order to determine whether a legal entity should be consolidated. ASU 2015-02 simplifies current guidance by
reducing the number of consolidation models; eliminating the risk that a reporting entity may have to consolidate based on a fee arrangement
with another legal entity; placing more weight on the risk of loss in order to identify the party that has a controlling financial interest; reducing
the number of instances that related party guidance needs to be applied when determining the party that has a controlling financial interest; and
changing rules for companies in certain industries that ordinarily employ limited partnership or variable interest entity structures. ASU 2015-02
is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015 and interim periods within those fiscal periods. For all other
entities, this standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption on a modified retrospective or full retrospective basis is permitted. The Company is currently
assessing the future impact of this update on its consolidated financial statements.
In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-17, “Business Combinations: Pushdown Accounting”, which provides an entity with an option
to apply pushdown accounting in its separate financial statements upon occurrence of an event in which an acquirer obtains control of the
acquired entity. The amendments in ASU 2014-17 are effective November 18, 2014. After the effective date, an acquired entity can make an
election to apply the guidance to future change-in-control events or to its most recent change-in-control event. However, if the financial
statements for the period in which the most recent change-in-control event occurred already have been issued or made available to be issued, the
application of this guidance would be a change in accounting principle. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this update will
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern: Disclosure of Uncertainties about an
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern”, which requires an entity’s management to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for interim and annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted for interim and annual reporting periods for which the financial
statements have not been previously issued. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this update will have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. ASU 2014-09 is intended to improve the financial
reporting requirements for revenue from contracts with customers by providing a principle-based approach. The core principal of the standard is
that revenue should be recognized when the transfer of promised goods or services is made in an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to
in exchange for the transfer of goods and services. ASU 2014-09 also requires disclosures enabling users of financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. This standard will be effective for
financial statements issued by public companies for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. For all other entities, the
amendments are effective for annual
(Continued)
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reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is
not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2014-09 on the consolidated financial statements.
(2)

Significant Risks and Uncertainties Including Business and Credit Concentrations and Liquidity
The Company believes its operations will continue to provide sufficient liquidity to meet the Company’s operating, investing, and debt service
obligations as they come due and satisfy cash needs through April 1, 2016.
The Company currently has a single customer. The PPA negotiated prior to the construction phase contractually obligates the customer to purchase
wind energy generated electricity. Revenue during the period covered by these financial statements represents electricity sold. This revenue is received
from a single customer base. The Company’s lenders have secured proceeds from the sale of energy from the Wind Project to provide for debt service
payments and operating costs required under the credit agreement (Note 5, Long-term Debt and Credit Agreement).

(3)

Capitalization of Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC
Prior to the establishment of a credit facility under a credit agreement with a consortium of banking institutions (Note 5, Long-term Debt and Credit
Agreement), liquidity for the Company was provided by WCV. Provisions of the credit agreement required the Company to establish certain levels of
capital expenditure prior to having access to funding under the credit facility.
On April 22, 2010, Finco and Holdco executed an equity capital contribution agreement (ECCA) and Holdco executed an amended and restated
operating agreement (and as amended and restated on June 2, 2010) with an equity investor (the Class A Unit Holder) (Note 7, Liability for Equity
Capital Contributions). The intent of the ECCA was to establish conditions precedent to funding under the amended and restated operating agreement
that would be executed on the funding date for the purpose of providing funds to repay a portion of the construction loan. The amended and restated
operating agreement provided for two classes of ownership units: Classes A and B. The equity investor contributed cash in exchange for all Class A
interests in Holdco. Through March 31, 2010, WCV provided contributions totaling $122,404, which are reflected in member’s equity. During the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, Finco made net distributions to WCV of $1,419, $1,382, and $2,568, respectively.
Finco’s existence shall be considered perpetual unless earlier dissolved and terminated, as a winding up and liquidation of Finco would occur upon the
consent of the member.
(Continued)
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(4)

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment at March 31, 2015 and 2014 consists of the following.

Operating wind farm assets
Buildings, land, and leasehold improvements and meteorological and other equipment
Total gross cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant, and equipment

(5)

2015

2014

$339,740
16,207
355,947
61,043
$294,904

$339,740
16,232
355,972
48,654
$307,318

Long-term Debt and Credit Agreement
On October 22, 2009, in connection with obtaining construction financing for the completion of the Wind Project, LC Wind established a credit
facility under a credit agreement (herein referred to as the Credit Facility) with a consortium of banking institutions (herein referred to as the LC Wind
Lenders) that provides for construction financing, a letter-of-credit facility, and a term loan facility (herein referred to as Term Loan). The Credit
Facility allowed LC Wind to borrow up to $231,500 during the construction of the Wind Project. The Credit Facility is secured by the assets of the
Wind Project.
The letter-of-credit facility of $7,800 secured the design, procurement, and construction of interconnection facilities necessary to transmit the power
supplied by the Wind Project. When the Wind Project was placed in service, the letter-of-credit security was released.
The construction financing under the Credit Facility was paid down after $107,685 proceeds from a government grant of $107,685 were received
(Note 6, Deferred Income from Government Grant). On July 22, 2010, the remaining indebtedness of the construction financing under the Credit
Facility was repaid with proceeds from a $123,250 term loan (herein Term Loan). The Term Loan was due in five years from conversion with debt
payments computed over a 17-year amortization schedule and bears interest at LIBOR plus a specified spread. A balloon payment or refinancing was
required at the end of the five-year term.
(Continued)
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On April 5, 2011, an amended and restated credit agreement (herein referred to as the Amended Credit Agreement) was executed and replaced the
Credit Facility. This resulted in the Term Loan being refinanced (herein referred to as the Refinancing). Furthermore, the LC Wind Lenders increased
their commitment in the Term Loan by a total of $22,992 (herein referred to as the New Commitment), which was borrowed for a new aggregate term
loan of $144,000 (herein referred to as the New Term Loan). The term of the New Term Loan is for the period from April 5, 2011 (effective date for both
the Amended Credit Agreement and the New Term Loan) to March 31, 2021 when it matures. Scheduled principal payments were computed using a
sixteen and one half (16.5) year amortization schedule. A balloon payment or refinancing would be required at the end of the term of the New Term
Loan on March 31, 2021.
The New Term Loan bears variable-rate interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 2.5% during the period commencing on the date of the
effectiveness of the Credit Facility and ending on the third anniversary date of the Credit Facility and increases by 0.25% on every third anniversary of
the date of the effectiveness of the Credit Facility and ending on the day prior to the ninth anniversary date of the effectiveness of the Credit Facility.
During the period commencing on the ninth anniversary date of the effectiveness of the Credit Facility and ending on the New Term Loan maturity
date, the applicable margin will be 3.25%. As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the interest rate for the New Term Loan was 3.16% and 2.83%, respectively.
Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility totaled $114,786 and $122,452 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Aggregate annual maturities due under the terms of the New Term Loan for the fiscal years subsequent to March 31, 2015 and thereafter are as follows:
Year ending March 31:
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
Total

$

7,462
7,179
7,280
7,650
8,039
77,176
$114,786

As a requirement of the Credit Facility and Amended Credit Agreement, LC Wind entered into interest rate hedges (Note 8, Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities).
The Amended Credit Agreement includes a collateral account agreement that requires proceeds from the sale of energy from the Wind Project be
remitted directly to the depositary agent of the Amended Credit Agreement to provide for debt service payments and operating costs required under the
Amended Credit Agreement.
(Continued)
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The Amended Credit Agreement is subject to certain covenants, including limitations on additional indebtedness, limitations on liens, requirements
for periodic financial and operational information, and compliance with certain required financial ratios. The Amended Credit Agreement also contains
voluntary prepayment provisions which provide for the right to prepay the New Term Loan without premium or penalty and contains mandatory
prepayments for such events as upwind array events. As of June 30, 2015, the Company was not required to make any such mandatory prepayments of
amounts borrowed under the New Term Loan. Additionally, the Amended Credit Agreement restricts payment of dividends, distributions, and returns
of capital to affiliates of the Company unless provided by the Amended Credit Agreement.
In connection with the establishment of the Credit Facility, LC Wind incurred $10,534 of deferred financing costs and incurred an additional $1,784 of
deferred financing costs in connection with the Refinancing, which are being amortized using the effective-interest method over the term of the
Amended Credit Agreement. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 amortized financing fees of $1,003, $1,083, and $1,629,
respectively, were charged to expense as interest expense.
(6)

Deferred Income from Government Grant
On February 17, 2009, legislation was enacted to authorize the U.S. Treasury to offer a cash grant in lieu of the Investment Tax Credit
under Section 1603, a provision included in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. LC Wind made an application under the
provisions of Section 1603 and received $107,685 in June 2010. As required by the credit agreement, proceeds were used to reduce outstanding
amounts owed under the Credit Facility (Note 5, Long-term Debt and Credit Agreement).
The Company elected to record the proceeds as a deferred income recorded as a liability and is subject to amortization over the estimated life of the
Wind Project, which is a term of 30 years. The amortization is presented in the consolidated statements of income.
The grant is subject to recapture if LC Wind, the applicant under the program, disposes of the Wind Project to a disqualified person (as defined under
Section 1603 guidelines) or the property ceases to qualify as specified energy property (as defined under Section 1603 guidelines) within five years
from the date the property was placed in service in 2010. Potential recapture of the government grant is determined on a declining scale based on the
annual anniversary dates when the property is placed in service. As of March 31, 2015, no amounts received under the grant were recaptured. The
recapture period for predominantly all of the wind turbines expired in May 2015. The recapture period for the remaining amounts received under the
grant will expire in January 2016 and the Company does not anticipate any recapture prior to expiration.
(Continued)
18

LOST CREEK WIND FINCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
Deferred income from government grant consists of the following at March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013:

(7)

2015

2014

2013

Balance at the beginning of year
Amortization of grant
Balance at the end of year

$93,925
(3,590)
$90,335

$97,515
(3,590)
$93,925

$101,105
(3,590)
$ 97,515

Current portion
Noncurrent portion
Balance at March 31

$ 3,590
86,745
$90,335

$ 3,590
90,335
$93,925

$

3,590
93,925
$ 97,515

Liability for Equity Capital Contributions
On June 2, 2010, Finco and an equity investor (Class A Holder) signed a Second Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (Holdco Op Agreement)
for Holdco. Immediately prior to that date, the Holdco Op Agreement, Class A Holder and Finco each held membership interests in Holdco. In
consideration for making a capital contribution to Holdco, Class A Holder’s prior membership interests in Holdco were converted to Class A interests
(Class A Units) in Holdco, and Finco’s prior membership interests in Holdco were converted to Class B interests (Class B Units) in Holdco. The Holdco
Op Agreement established the percentages to be used as between holders of Class A Units and Class B Units for the allocation of various elements of
taxable profits and losses, deduction, credits, and cash flows.
No Holdco member has any personal liability, whether to Holdco or to its creditors, for the debts, obligations, expenses, or liabilities of Holdco, in
excess of the value of such member’s capital account, except as expressly provided by the Holdco Op Agreement. A member, except to the extent
expressed by the Holdco Op Agreement, is not required to restore a deficit balance in its capital account.
Finco, the initial holder of Class B Units, is the manager of Holdco (herein referred to as LC Manager). The LC Manager conducts, directs, and
exercises control over all activities of Holdco, and has full power and authority on behalf of Holdco to manage and administer the business and affairs
of Holdco except as provided by the Holdco Op Agreement. The holders of Class A Units have the right to remove the LC Manager under certain
circumstances specified within the Holdco Op Agreement.
The Company has used an effective-interest rate computation to accrete an expense under the Holdco Op Agreement for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013. Tax benefits allocated to the Class A Holder have been recorded as a reduction of the liability for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 and are included in the consolidated statements of income.
In connection with the transactions giving rise to the signing of the Holdco Op Agreement, the Company incurred $594 of deferred financing costs,
which are being amortized using the effective-interest method over a ten-year term. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
amortized financing fees of $56, $51, and $47, respectively, were charged to interest expense.
(Continued)
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(8)

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company uses interest-rate-related derivative instruments to manage exposure related to changes in interest rates on its variable-rate credit facility.
The Company does not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging. The Company has no other derivative
instruments. The Company does not speculate using derivative instruments.
Interest-rate-related derivative instruments (Hedges) were created to hedge interest rate volatility associated with the underlying LIBOR interest rate of
the Term Loan and anticipated refinancing of the balloon payment for both the original Term Loan as executed on October 22, 2009, and as amended
and restated on April 5, 2011 (Credit Facility) as described in Note 5, Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreement. As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the total
notional amount of the Company’s outstanding interest-rate swap agreements that were entered into to hedge interest rate volatility on outstanding or
forecasted debt obligations were as follows:
Interest-rate hedge instrument

2015

2014

Hedge Term

1) Term Loan
2) Anticipated Refinancing
3) Term Loan
4) Anticipated Refinancing
Total

$ 96,458
92,524
18,328
9,257
$216,567

$102,908
92,524
19,544
9,257
$224,233

September 2010 - September 2015
September 2015 - September 2027
April 2011 - March 2021
March 2021 - September 2027

The first Hedges (1) were created for the five-year period for the Term Loan with the second (2) Hedges created to hedge the 12-year period for the
anticipated refinancing of the balloon payment during 2015. These Hedges bear fixed interest rates of 3.77% and 5.10%, respectively and were
effective on September 30, 2010. The notional amounts of the Hedges are reflective of the Term Loan upon conversion.
As further described in Note 5, Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreement, the Amended Credit Agreement included the commercial requirement for the
creation of two (2) additional sets of Hedges (sets (3) and (4) in the table above) on April 5, 2011 in tandem with the Refinancing. The notional
amounts of the Hedges were the same as the New Commitment for each of the LC Wind Lenders. The Hedges were created to minimize financial risk to
protect the cost of debt from adverse changes in interest rates due to interest rate volatility associated with the underlying LIBOR interest rate. The
Hedges (3) were created for the 10-year period for the New Commitment that totals $22,992 in the aggregate. The Hedges (4) were created to hedge the
period from March 31, 2021 to September 30, 2027 period for the anticipated refinancing of the balloon payment anticipated at the maturity of the
New Term Loan on March 31, 2021. The Hedges bear fixed interest rates of 3.51% and 5.59%, respectively.
Interest expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 includes $346, $(420), and $(484), respectively, of net gains (losses),
representing cash flow hedge ineffectiveness arising from differences between the terms of the interest rate swap and the hedged debt obligation.
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As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, deferred losses on derivative instruments of $18,718 and $13,921, respectively, had accumulated in member’s equity.
The derivative instruments held as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Liability derivatives
2015
Balance
sheet
location

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic 815:
Interest rate contracts

Fair
value

Current maturities of
derivatives and other
long-term liabilities
Derivatives and other
long-term liabilities

Interest rate contracts
Total liability derivatives designated as hedging instruments under
ASC Topic 815

$ 4,260
16,510

2014
Balance
sheet
location

Current maturities of
derivatives and other
long-term liabilities
Derivatives and other
long-term liabilities

$20,770

Fair
value

$ 4,097
12,222
$16,319

The effect of derivative instruments on the statements of income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 is as follows:

Derivatives in ASC Topic 815 cash flow hedging
relationships

2015:
Effective portion
Ineffective portion
Total
2014:
Effective portion
Ineffective portion
Total
2013:
Effective portion
Ineffective portion
Total

Amount of
gain or (loss)
recognized in
member’s
equity

$
$
$
$
$
$

Statement of
operations
location

(4,797)
—
(4,797)

Interest expense
Interest expense

7,331
—
7,331

Interest expense
Interest expense

(1,082)
—
(1,082)

Interest expense
Interest expense

Amount
transferred
out of AOCI
into net
income

$
$
$
$
$
$

(4,157)
346
(3,811)
(4,350)
(420)
(4,770)
(4,143)
(484)
(4,627)
(Continued)
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(9)

Fair Value Measurements
a)

Short-term Financial Instruments

Management has determined that the carrying value of financial instruments, including trade accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, restricted cash,
trade accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of the instruments that will be settled in cash. The
fair value of restricted cash is classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair values of trade accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, trade
accounts payable and accrued expenses are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
b)

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The Company’s financial assets and (liabilities) which require fair value measurement on a recurring basis are classified within the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

Level 1

Fair Value
Level 2
Level 3

Total

March 31, 2015
Interest rate swaps

$ —

$ 20,770

$ —

$ 20,770

March 31, 2014
Interest rate swaps

$ —

$ 16,319

$ —

$ 16,319

Derivative instruments subject to re-measurement are presented in the financial statements at fair value. The interest rate swaps are valued by
discounting the net cash flows using the forward LIBOR curve with the valuations adjusted by the Company’s credit default hedge rate.
Derivative instruments used in hedging activities are recorded at fair value and recorded in their appropriate asset and liability caption in the balance
sheets (Note 8, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities). Derivative instruments are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
(Continued)
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c)

Financial Instruments not Measured at Fair Value

The follow table presents the carrying amount, fair value and the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, but for which fair value is disclosed.
Fair Value
Level 3

As reflected on
the balance sheet

Level 1

Level 2

March 31, 2015
Long-term debt, including current portion

$

114,786

$ —

$ 114,786

$ —

$ 114,786

March 31, 2014
Long-term debt, including current portion

$

122,452

$ —

$ 122,452

$ —

$ 122,452

Total

The carrying value of the obligation outstanding under the credit facility (Note 5, Long-term Debt and Credit Agreement) is measured at amortized cost
which approximates fair value since this obligation is fully secured and has varying interest charges based on current market rates.
(10) Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company has asset retirement obligations (AROs) arising from the obligation for the dismantling and removing the asset and site restoration for
the Wind Project. The obligation resulted from the Company entering into wind easement agreements with landowners that requires the Company to
return property under the agreements, subject to certain conditions specified in the agreements, to the condition prior to any activities performed by the
Company. The liability was initially measured at fair value and subsequently is adjusted for accretion expense and changes in the amount or timing of
the estimated cash flows. The corresponding asset retirement costs were capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset and
depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life. The following table presents the activity for the AROs for the years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and
2013:

Balance at beginning of year
Accretion expense
Balance at end of year

2015

2014

2013

$1,187
99
$1,286

$1,096
91
$1,187

$1,012
84
$1,096

(11) Statements of Cash Flows
Interest payments for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 were $7,928, $8,163, and $8,501, respectively.
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies
(a)

Legal Proceedings
The Company appealed to the Circuit Court of DeKalb County, Missouri a decision of the Missouri State Tax Commission concerning the real
property tax assessment for the Lost Creek Project located in DeKalb County, Missouri in February 2014. Under Missouri law, the full property
tax bill had to be paid, notwithstanding the appeal. An estimate of approximately $3 million was subject to reimbursement at March 31, 2014.
On June 5, 2014, the Circuit Court affirmed the decision of the Missouri State Tax Commission. On July 8, 2014, the Company appealed that
judgment to the Missouri Court of Appeals Western District. In February 2015, the Company withdrew the appeal of the decision by the Circuit
Court.
Currently, no claims have been made against the Company. The Company is not aware of any claims that may give rise to legal proceedings.

(b)

Power Purchase Agreement
The Wind Generation Purchase Agreement between a rural electric cooperative and Lost Creek for the DeKalb County, Missouri Wind Powered
Electric Generating Facility (herein referred to as Lost Creek PPA) includes requirements for turbine availability once the Wind Project
commences commercial operations. Availability is defined within the agreement and annual damages are capped at $2,000 and the maximum
amount of damages over the term of the Lost Creek PPA is $10,000.

(c)

Operations and Support Agreement
On May 15, 2009, LC Wind entered into an operations and support agreement with the major turbine supplier that supplied turbines installed at
the Wind Project. The term of the agreement is for five years requiring payments of approximately $2.6 million per year for the covered services.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, the agreement was amended to extend the term to calendar year 2017 and increase payments to
approximately $2.9 million per year for the covered services upon the expiration of the initial five-year term.

(13) Related-Party Transactions
WCV disbursed funds on behalf of the Company in connection with ongoing operations. Disbursements made by WCV were reimbursed, typically
within a month.
(Continued)
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(14) Subsequent Events
On April 1, 2015, WCG entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA) with Pattern US Finance Company LLC (Pattern Energy), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Pattern Energy Group Inc., pursuant to which, WCG will sell to Pattern Energy 100% of the membership interests in Finco. On May 15,
2015, WCG consummated the PSA with Pattern Energy.
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through July 10, 2015, which is the date these financial statements were available to be issued and
noted there were no other subsequent events to disclose.
(Continued)
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Member
Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC:
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC and its subsidiary (the Company),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2015, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lincoln County Wind
Project Holdco, LLC and its subsidiary as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended March 31, 2015, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
1

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, on May 15, 2015, all of the Company’s membership interests were sold to Pattern US
Finance Company LLC. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
/s/ KPMG
St. Louis, Missouri
July 10, 2015
2
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2015

2014

Assets
Current assets:
Trade accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash
Total current assets
Property, plant, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $29,544 and $17,793 as of March 31, 2015 and March 31,
2014, respectively
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $336 and $202 as of March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014,
respectively
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current maturity of long-term debt
Current maturities of derivatives and other long-term liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Asset retirement obligations
Derivatives and other long-term liabilities, less current portion
Total liabilities
Equity:
Capital and accumulated income
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total equity before noncontrolling interest
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

2,172
163
14,504
16,839

3

3,118
79
14,503
17,700

314,608

326,347

522
19,708
$351,677

656
20,228
$364,931

$

$

204
1,312
6,286
939
8,741
44,127
1,292
730
54,890

99,323
(1,312)
98,011
198,776
296,787
$351,677

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

97
1,626
6,182
1,151
9,056
50,413
1,193
247
60,909

81,993
(631)
81,362
222,660
304,022
$364,931

LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Operations
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Revenues
Cost of revenue:
Project expense
Depreciation and accretion
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expense:
General and administrative
Total operating expense
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Interest expense paid to related party
Interest income
Financing fees associated with debt extinguishment
Total other expense
Net income (loss)
Less net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company

2015

2014

2013

$ 27,425

$29,792

$ 13,649

7,348
11,850
19,198
8,227

7,523
11,858
19,381
10,411

4,247
6,012
10,259
3,390

148
148
8,079

93
93
10,318

54
54
3,336

(3,246)
—
45
—
(3,201)
4,878
(15,751)
$ 20,629

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(3,295)
(48)
8
—
(3,335)
6,983
(8,386)
$15,369

(2,725)
(394)
3
(6,930)
(10,046)
(6,710)
(3,319)
$ (3,391)

LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Effective portion of change in fair market value of derivatives
Reclassifications to net income (loss)
Total other comprehensive (loss) income
Comprehensive income (loss)
Less comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the controlling interest
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2015

2014

2013

$ 4,878

$ 6,983

$(6,710)

(1,715)
1,034
(681)
4,197
(15,751)
$ 19,948

820
1,132
1,952
8,935
(8,386)
$17,321

(2,077)
290
(1,787)
(8,497)
(3,319)
$(5,178)

LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Balance at April 1, 2012
Proceeds from
contribution with
addition of Class A
members
Capital distributions
Transaction costs for
equity capital
contributions
Noncash contribution
from Wind Capital
Group, LLC, of wind
assets
Change in membership
interest in
subsidiary
Net loss
Other comprehensive
loss
Balance at March 31, 2013
Capital distributions
Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive
income
Balance at March 31, 2014
Capital distributions
Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive
income
Balance at March 31, 2015

Noncontrolling Interest
Accumulated
Capital and
Other
Total
Accumulated Comprehensive Member’s
Income
Loss
Capital

Controlling Interest
Accumulated
Capital and
Other
Accumulated Comprehensive
Income
Loss

$

$

—

$

246,870
(732)

—

—
—

$

—

246,870
(732)

92,217

$

Total
Member’s
Capital

(796) $ 91,421

Capital and
Accumulated
Income

Total Equity
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

$

$

92,217

Total
Member’s
Capital

(796) $ 91,421

—
(15,395)

—
—

—
(15,395)

246,870
(16,127)

—
—

246,870
(16,127)

—

—

—

(2,472)

—

(2,472)

(2,472)

—

(2,472)

—

—

—

1,038

—

1,038

1,038

—

1,038

(1,355)
(3,319)

—
—

(1,355)
(3,319)

1,355
(3,391)

—
—

1,355
(3,391)

—
(6,710)

—
—

—
(6,710)

—
$ 241,464 $
(10,418)
(8,386)

—
—
—
—

—
$241,464 $
(10,418)
(8,386)

—
73,352 $
(6,728)
15,369

(1,787)
(1,787)
—
(2,583) $ 70,769 $ 314,816 $
—
(6,728)
(17,146)
—
15,369
6,983

(1,787)
(1,787)
(2,583) $312,233
—
(17,146)
—
6,983

—
$ 222,660
(8,133)
(15,751)

—
—
—
—

—
$222,660 $
(8,133)
(15,751)

—
81,993 $
(3,299)
20,629

1,952
1,952
—
(631) $ 81,362 $ 304,653 $
—
(3,299)
(11,432)
—
20,629
4,878

1,952
1,952
(631) $304,022
—
(11,432)
—
4,878

—
—

—
$198,776

—
99,323

—
$ 198,776

$

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

(681)
(681)
—
(1,312) $ 98,011 $ 298,099

$

(681)
(681)
(1,312) $296,787

LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and accretion
Noncash interest expense
Noncash financing cost on debt extinguishment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Restricted cash
Trade accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Trade accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from credit facility
Principal payments on credit facility
Proceeds from term loan
Principal payments on term loan
Proceeds from third party equity capital contributions to subsidiaries
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Distributions to Wind Capital Ventures, LLC and affiliates
Payment of deferred financing costs
Payment of transaction costs related to third-party capital contributions made to subsidiaries
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2015

2014

2013

$ 20,629
(15,751)

$ 15,369
(8,386)

11,850
243
—

11,858
120
—

6,012
330
6,672

(1)
946
(84)
(206)
—
17,626

2,011
(563)
757
(2,174)
4,216
23,208

(16,324)
(2,555)
(783)
(14,627)
(1,344)
(29,329)

(12)
(12)

(14)
(14)

(60,385)
(60,385)

—
—
—
(6,182)
—
(8,133)
(3,299)
—
—
(17,614)
—
—
$
—

—
—
—
(6,048)
—
(10,418)
(6,728)
—
—
(23,194)
—
—
$
—

86,303
(289,191)
62,885
(242)
246,870
(732)
(15,395)
(301)
(483)
89,714
—
—
$
—

$

(3,391)
(3,319)

LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(1)

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Description of Business
Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (herein referred to as Lincoln County as a standalone entity
and the Company or Holdco as the consolidated entity, including subsidiaries), was formed on April 13, 2011 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Lincoln County Wind Project Finco, LLC (herein referred to as Finco), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Lincoln County Wind Project
Holdings, LLC (herein referred to as Lincoln County Holdings). Lincoln County Holdings is a wholly owned subsidiary of Wind Capital Group,
LLC (herein referred to as WCG), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Wind Capital Ventures, LLC (herein referred to as WCV). WCV was
formed on April 14, 2008 by NTR US Wind, Inc. (herein referred to as NTR US), which is 100% indirectly owned by NTR plc.
Holdco is a holding company with a single subsidiary, Post Rock Wind Power Project, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (herein
referred to as PR Wind or Post Rock). Post Rock is a wind energy owner/operator in the United States with its current sole asset, the Post Rock
wind project (herein referred to as the Wind Project), located in central Kansas. The Wind Project commenced commercial operations on
October 4, 2012.
Refer to Note 14, Subsequent Events, for changes in ownership structure subsequent to the balance sheet date.

(b)

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the useful lives of fixed assets;
recoverability of long-lived assets; estimates of future cash expenditures for asset retirement obligations; valuation of derivatives; and the
determination of noncontrolling interest using the hypothetical liquidation at book value (HLBV) method. The current economic environment
has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in those estimates and assumptions.

(c)

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
They include the results of the Company’s majority owned subsidiary with all significant intercompany balances and transactions eliminated.
(Continued)
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LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(d)

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash consists of all cash balances and highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less. All cash balances are
restricted as to withdrawal or usage under the Company’s loan agreement to pay operating expenses or service of debt obligations. Therefore, it
is the Company’s accounting policy to present changes in its restricted cash accounts in its consolidated statement of cash flows within
operating activities.
Restricted cash at March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

Funds associated with the administration of long-term debt under the credit agreements (Note 6, Long- Term Debt and Credit
Agreements)
Cash held in escrow accounts
Total restricted cash
(e)

2015

2014

$14,230
274
$14,504

$14,221
282
$14,503

Revenue Recognition
Upon commercial operations of the Company’s wind farm, the Company recognizes revenue when the customer takes delivery of generated
power and assumes risk of loss, collection of the relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, and the sales price
is fixed or determinable. The point of delivery of generated power is established under contract. Wind energy generated power is metered at the
contracted point of delivery. Rates for kilowatt-hours charged are contractually established. Customers are public utilities with stable revenue
streams from residential and industrial customers.
The Company evaluates its long-term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to determine whether it is a lease. At the inception of the lease or
subsequent modification, the Company determines whether the lease is an operating or capital lease based upon its terms and characteristics. The
Company has determined that its PPA at Post Rock (herein referred to as the Post Rock PPA) is an operating lease and in effect recognizes
revenue under the PPA to the extent of power delivered based upon contractual rates. Substantially all of the Company’s wind farm assets at Post
Rock are represented by assets under lease under the PPA.

(f)

Cost of Revenue
The Company’s cost of revenue is comprised of direct costs of operating and maintaining its wind project facilities, including labor, turbine
service arrangements, land lease royalties, depreciation, accretion, property taxes and insurance.
(Continued)
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LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(g)

Trade Accounts Receivable
Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts collected on trade accounts receivable are
included in net cash provided by operating activities in the statements of cash flows. Trade accounts receivable related primarily to the purchaser
under the PPA with payment terms of approximately 25 days. The Company does not routinely maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for
estimated losses due to the nature of the customers inherent in its accounts receivable portfolio, but as situations arise with slow payment,
consideration for an allowance may be made. The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its customers.

(h)

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment includes amounts expended for the development of the commercially viable wind farm site, the purchase of
necessary materials, contract services, and machinery and equipment for the construction of a wind farm. Also included are buildings, computer
and network equipment, furniture, fixtures, and other office equipment necessary to support the operating activities of a wind farm.
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of property, plant, and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use (i.e., capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).
Costs include the labor costs directly related to construction of the wind farm. Capitalization of directly attributable costs ceases when
substantially all the activities are complete for the property, plant, and equipment to be ready for use, even if the asset has not yet been brought
into use. Items of property, plant, and equipment are ready for use (or considered placed in service) when their construction is complete at which
point depreciation commences.
The cost of property, plant, and equipment includes, where relevant, the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the
site to the extent required; such cost is recognized as an asset retirement obligation (Note 10, Asset Retirement Obligations). Decommissioning
costs include liabilities incurred during the period of use for purposes other than producing the output of its intended use.
As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, property, plant, and equipment included a cost of $971, which represents the estimate for dismantling and
removing the asset and site restoration for the Wind Project.
Depreciation on plant and equipment is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation begins
when the assets are ready for their intended use. Total depreciation for the years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $11,751, $11,767
and $5,927, respectively, which was recorded in depreciation and accretion expense in the consolidated statements of operations.
(Continued)
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LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
The estimated economic useful of life for the various asset classes are presented in the table below:
Life in years

Wind farm machinery and equipment
Buildings and land improvements
Other machinery and equipment
(i)

5–31
15–20
2–10

Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 360, Property, Plant, and
Equipment, long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If circumstances require a long-lived asset or asset group be tested for
possible impairment, the Company would first compare undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by that asset or asset group to its
carrying value. If the carrying value of the long-lived asset or asset group is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis, impairment is
recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including
discounted cash flow models, quoted market values, and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary.
The Company performed an impairment analysis of property, plant, and equipment as part of its year-end procedures. No impairment of
long-lived assets was indicated as of March 31, 2015 and 2014.

(j)

Other Assets
Other assets at March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

Deferred transmission network upgrades
Fair value of derivative assets for cash flow interest rate hedges
Total other assets

2015

2014

$19,708
—
$19,708

$19,708
520
$20,228

Deferred transmission network upgrades represent costs paid by the Company to a third party for the construction of transmission network
upgrades adjacent to the Wind Project. U.S. Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) guidelines provide that the interconnection
customers are entitled to a refund with interest for the costs of such transmission network upgrades in the form of transmission service credits or
in a lump sum at the end of no more than 20 years.
The fair value of derivative assets for cash flow interest rate hedge is discussed in Note 7, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.
(Continued)
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LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(k)

Deferred Financing Costs
Transaction costs directly attributable to the creation of long-term debt are capitalized. These costs are amortized over the term of the related
debt facility using the effective interest method.

(l)

Trade Accounts Payable
Trade accounts payable comprises balances owed to trade creditors, and are substantially all related to operating activities of the Wind Project at
March 31, 2015 and 2014.

(m)

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, which
requires entities to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at their respective fair values. For
derivatives designated in hedging relationships, changes in the fair value are either offset through earnings against the change in fair value of the
hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or recognized in member’s equity, to the extent the derivative is effective at offsetting the
changes in cash flows being hedged until the hedged item affects earnings. The fair value of the forecasted cash flows associated with the hedged
interest payments of the hedged item is calculated using the discounted cash flows at prevailing interest rates at the respective balance sheet date
being valued. This is performed by creating the hypothetical derivative that matches the terms of the forecasted cash flows.
The Company only enters into derivative contracts that it intends to designate as a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash
flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relationships, the Company formally
documents the hedging relationship and its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the
hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk is assessed
prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method used to measure ineffectiveness. The Company also formally assesses, both at
the inception of the hedging relationship and on a quarterly basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging relationships are highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged transactions. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as part of a cash
flow hedging relationship, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of member’s equity and
reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative
representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in current earnings
as interest expense.
(Continued)
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LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(n)

Capitalized Interest
The Company capitalizes interest cost incurred on debt during the construction of wind farm projects. The following provides a breakdown of
total interest cost incurred during fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Interest cost capitalized
Interest expense
Total interest cost

2015

2014

2013

$ —
3,345
$3,345

$ —
3,434
$3,434

$4,569
3,204
$7,773

In 2015, 2014 and 2013, interest cost paid to related parties of the Company were $0, $48 and $394 respectively. Refer to Note 13, RelatedParty Transactions.
(o)

Income Taxes
As a single-member limited liability company, all corresponding income tax benefits or liabilities are passed through to its owners.

(p)

Noncontrolling Interest
Noncontrolling interests are classified as a separate component of equity in the consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of
member’s equity. Additionally, net income and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests are reflected separately
from consolidated net income and comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statements of operations, consolidated statements of changes
in member’s equity, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss). Any change in ownership of a subsidiary while the
controlling financial interest is retained is accounted for as an equity transaction between the controlling and noncontrolling interests. Losses
continue to be attributed to the noncontrolling interests, even when the noncontrolling interests’ basis has been reduced to zero. The Company’s
subsidiary uses the HLBV as an approximation of the noncontrolling interest for certain profit sharing arrangements. HLBV uses a balance sheet
approach, which measures the Company’s equity in income or loss by calculating the change in the amount of net worth the partners are legally
able to claim based on a hypothetical liquidation of the entity at the beginning of a reporting period compared to the end of that period. This
method is used in partnerships, which contain agreements designating different allocations of value among investors, where the allocations
change in form or percentage over the life of the partnership.

(q)

Contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies, including environmental remediation costs not within the scope of FASB ASC Subtopic 410-20, Asset
Retirement Obligations and Environmental Obligations – Asset Retirement Obligations, arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and
penalties, and other sources, are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or
remediation can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred.
(Continued)
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LINCOLN COUNTY WIND PROJECT HOLDCO, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
Accruals for estimated losses from asset retirement obligations generally are recognized no later than completion of the preliminary estimates of
cost prior to the wind farm commencing commercial operations. Such accruals are adjusted as further information develops or circumstances
change. Costs of expected future expenditures for asset retirement obligations are discounted to their present value.
(r)

Fair Value Measurements
The Company adopted the provisions under FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for fair value measurements of
financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. Where available, fair value is based on observable market prices or derived from such prices. Where observable prices or inputs are not
available, valuation models are applied.
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs to
valuation of these assets or liabilities are as follows:
Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
Level 2—Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability
through correlation with market data at the measurement date and for the duration of the instrument’s anticipated life.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities and which reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuations technique and the risk inherent in the inputs to the
model.

(s)

Cost Allocation
During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, all direct costs related to the Company were capitalized or expensed based on the
nature of the costs incurred. Although the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of WCV, no general overhead costs incurred by WCV were
allocated to the Company.
(Continued)
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March 31, 2015 and 2014
(All dollar amounts are presented in thousands)
(t)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In April 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-03, “Interest – Imputation of Interest” to simplify the presentation of
debt issuance costs by requiring that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct
deduction from the carrying amount of the debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt
issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU. ASU 2015-03 is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years and should be applied retrospectively. For all other entities, the amendments
are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. Upon transition, an entity is
required to comply with the applicable disclosures for a change in accounting principle. The Company is currently assessing the future impact of
this update on its consolidated financial statements.
In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, “Consolidation: Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis” to modify the analysis that
companies must perform in order to determine whether a legal entity should be consolidated. ASU 2015-02 simplifies current guidance by
reducing the number of consolidation models; eliminating the risk that a reporting entity may have to consolidate based on a fee arrangement
with another legal entity; placing more weight on the risk of loss in order to identify the party that has a controlling financial interest; reducing
the number of instances that related party guidance needs to be applied when determining the party that has a controlling financial interest; and
changing rules for companies in certain industries that ordinarily employ limited partnership or variable interest entity structures. ASU 2015-02
is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015 and interim periods within those fiscal periods. For all other
entities, this standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption on a modified retrospective or full retrospective basis is permitted. The Company is currently
assessing the future impact of this update on its consolidated financial statements.
In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-17, “Business Combinations: Pushdown Accounting”, which provides an entity with an option
to apply pushdown accounting in its separate financial statements upon occurrence of an event in which an acquirer obtains control of the
acquired entity. The amendments in ASU 2014-17 are effective November 18, 2014. After the effective date, an acquired entity can make an
election to apply the guidance to future change-in-control events or to its most recent change-in-control event. However, if the financial
statements for the period in which the most recent change-in-control event occurred already have been issued or made available to be issued, the
application of this guidance would be a change in accounting principle. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this update will
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern: Disclosure of Uncertainties about an
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern”, which requires an entity’s management to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about
the
(Continued)
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entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for interim and annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted for interim and annual reporting periods for which the financial
statements have not been previously issued. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this update will have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. ASU 2014-09 is intended to improve the financial
reporting requirements for revenue from contracts with customers by providing a principle based approach. The core principal of the standard is
that revenue should be recognized when the transfer of promised goods or services is made in an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to
in exchange for the transfer of goods and services. ASU 2014-09 also requires disclosures enabling users of financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. This standard will be effective for
financial statements issued by public companies for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. For all other entities, the
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2014-09 on the
consolidated financial statements.
(2)

Significant Risks and Uncertainties Including Business and Credit Concentrations and Liquidity
The Company believes its operations will continue to provide sufficient liquidity to meet the Company’s operating, investing, and debt service
obligations as they come due and satisfy cash needs through April 1, 2016.
The Company currently has a single customer. The PPA negotiated prior to the construction phase (Note 12(b), Power Purchase Agreement)
contractually obligates the customer to purchase wind energy generated electricity. Revenues during the period covered by these financial statements
represent electricity sold. The Company’s lenders have secured the Company’s share of distributable cash from the sale of energy, net of operating
expenses, from the Wind Project, to provide for debt service payments and operating costs required under the credit agreement (Note 6(b), Term Loan
Facility).

(3)

Capitalization of Lincoln County Wind Project Holdco, LLC
Prior to the establishment of a credit facility under a credit agreement with a consortium of banking institutions (Note 6, Long-Term Debt and Credit
Agreements), liquidity for the Company was provided by WCV. WCV provided funding to the Company through contributions for liquidity
requirements. While the Wind Project was under construction, provisions of the credit agreement required the Company to establish certain levels of
capital expenditure prior to having access to funding under the credit facility.
Holdco’s existence shall be considered perpetual until such time as a winding up and liquidation of Holdco would occur upon the consent of the
members.
(Continued)
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On December 30, 2011, concurrent with the establishment of several debt agreements between the Company and Post Rock and certain banking
institutions (Note 6, Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreements), the Company and PR Wind executed an equity capital contribution agreement (herein
referred to as the ECCA) with two equity investors (Note 9, Equity Capital Contribution Agreement). The intent of the ECCA was to establish
conditions precedent to funding under an amended and restated operating agreement that would be executed on the funding date for the purpose of
providing capital to repay a portion of the construction loan when the Wind Project commences commercial operations and the construction loan is
converted to a term loan facility. On November 20, 2012, the Company, and three equity investors signed a Third Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement for PR Wind (PR Op Agreement) and the three equity investors made capital contributions of approximately $247 million to PR Wind.
During fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, WCG contributed $0, $0 and $1,038 of cost attributable to capitalized interest paid by WCG. During the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, WCV made no other contributions to the Company.
(4)

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment at March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

Operating wind farm assets
Buildings, land and leasehold improvements, computers, meteorological and other equipment
Total gross cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

2015

2014

$335,776
8,376
344,152
29,544
$314,608

$335,776
8,364
344,140
17,793
$326,347

At March 31, 2015 and 2014, the operating wind farm assets include capitalized related party interest of $1,938, respectively, associated with
promissory notes entered into with WCG during fiscal year 2012.
(Continued)
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(5)

Accrued Expenses
The composition of accrued expenses at March 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Accrued legal, accounting and auditing expenses
Accrued expense for payments in lieu of taxes
Accrued interest
Accrued liabilities under escrow agreements funded with restricted cash
Other
Total accrued expenses

2015

2014

$ 141
161
417
272
321
$1,312

$ 110
162
437
314
603
$1,626

Accrued interest resulted from liabilities associated with the debt service requirements for the term loan agreement of the Company and with a letter of
credit facility of Post Rock (Note 6, Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreements).
(6)

Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreements
(a)

Construction Loan and Letter of Credit Facility
On December 30, 2011, in connection with obtaining construction financing for the completion of the Wind Project, Post Rock established a
construction loan facility (herein referred to as the Construction Loan) under a credit agreement with a consortium of banking institutions
(herein the PR Construction Lenders) that provided for construction financing to borrow up to $292,960 during the construction of the Wind
Project. The Construction Loan bore variable-rate interest at LIBOR plus a specified spread (weighted average LIBOR for the multiple LIBOR
instruments was 0.65% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012). The Construction Loan was paid off with approximately $246,870 of proceeds
from equity capital contributions to Post Rock Wind Power Project, LLC (Note 9, Equity Capital Contribution Agreement) and approximately
$42,321 of proceeds from debt issued by the Company.
In connection with the establishment of the Construction Loan, Post Rock incurred $3,696 of deferred financing costs, which were amortized
using the effective interest method over the term of the Construction Loan. While the Wind Project was under construction, the interest expense
from the amortization of financing fees was capitalized as a part of the cost of the Wind Project and totaled $2,831 during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2013.
On December 30, 2011, concurrent with the establishment of the Construction Loan, a letter of credit facility (herein referred to as the LC
Facility) was established to provide security for any damages incurred from any nonperformance by Post Rock under the agreement entered into
to sell power generated by the Wind Project (Note 12(b), Power Purchase Agreement). The LC Facility was entered into with one of the PR
Construction Lenders that provides for draws of letters of credit for up to $20,100. The LC Facility included costs for the amount of drawn letters
of credit and on the
(Continued)
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amount of the unused portion of the facility. Each bore different costs. The LC Facility bears interest at a specified spread on drawn letters of
credit that increases over the term of the LC Facility, which was 2.25% for the years ended at March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. The LC Facility
bore interest of 0.75% on unused portions of the facility. At March 31, 2015 and 2014, the LC Facility was fully utilized with $20,100 of letters
of credit outstanding.
(b)

Term Loan Facility
On December 30, 2011, concurrent with the establishment of the Construction Loan and the LC Facility, the Company established a term loan
facility (herein referred to as the Term Facility) with two banking institutions that were also PR Construction Lenders (herein referred to as the
Term Lenders) that provided for borrowings up to $62,885 to repay portions of the Construction Loan after the Wind Project commenced
commercial operations. Funding of $62,885 occurred on November 20, 2012.
The Term Loan had a variable-rate interest at LIBOR plus a specified spread. LIBOR for the Lincoln Co. Term Loan was 0.26% and 0.24% as of
March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
As a requirement of the Term Loan, the Company entered into interest rate hedges (Note 7, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities).
The Term Loan and depositary agreements required that Lincoln County Holdco’s share of distributable cash from the sale of energy, net of
operating expenses, from the Wind Project be remitted directly to the depositary bank of the Term Loan to provide for debt service payments
required under the Term Loan.
The Term Loan was subject to certain covenants, including limitations on additional indebtedness, limitations on liens, requirements for
periodic financial and operational information, and compliance with certain required financial ratios. The Term Loan also restricted dividends,
distributions, and returns of capital to affiliates of the Company unless provided by the Term Loan.
Amounts outstanding under the Lincoln Co. Term Loan totaled $50,413 and $56,595 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
In connection with the establishment of the Term Loan, the Company incurred $7,788 of deferred financing costs. The Term Loan was
determined to represent an extinguishment of the Post Rock Construction Loan. Due to this determination, deferred financing costs attributable
to lender fees of $6,930 were required to be expensed at the Post Rock Term Loan funding date. The remaining deferred financing costs of $858
represent third-party financing fees that are attributable to Lincoln County Holdco costs and during the years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, $134, $197, and $330 respectively, was charged to expense as interest.
On May 15, 2015, the Term Loan and its related deferred financing costs were extinguished upon the closing of the acquisition of Finco by
Pattern US Finance Company LLC (Pattern Energy), a wholly owned subsidiary of Pattern Energy Group Inc. (Note 14, Subsequent Events).
(Continued)
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(7)

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company uses interest-rate-related derivative instruments to manage exposure related to changes in interest rates on the variable-rate term debt
facility. The Company does not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging. The Company has no other derivative
instruments. The Company does not speculate using derivative instruments.
The interest-rate-related derivative instruments (Hedges) were created to hedge interest rate volatility associated with the underlying LIBOR interest
rate of the Term Loan. The Hedges were created as of the execution of the credit agreement on December 30, 2011. The Hedges were created for the
10-year period of the Term Loan to minimize financial risk to protect the cost of debt from adverse changes in interest rates due to interest rate
volatility associated with the underlying LIBOR interest rate. The Hedges bear fixed interest rates of 2.115%. The Hedges were effective upon the
execution of the Term Loan (Note 6, Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreements). As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the total notional amount of the
Company’s outstanding interest-rate swap agreements that were entered into to hedge interest rate volatility on outstanding or forecasted debt
obligations were $50,413 and $56,595, respectively.
Interest expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 includes $0, $71 and $(67) of net gains (losses), respectively, representing
cash flow hedge ineffectiveness arising from differences between the terms of the interest rate swap and the hedged debt obligation.
As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, $1,312 and $631, respectively, of deferred losses on derivative instruments had accumulated in member’s equity. As
referenced in Note 14, Subsequent Events, the Term Loan and its related derivative instruments were extinguished and settled upon the closing of the
acquisition of Finco by Pattern Energy. As such, the amounts accumulated in member’s equity will be reclassed to net income (loss) subsequent to
March 31, 2015.
The fair values of derivative instruments, which are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820, held as of March 31, 2015 and
2014 are as follows:
Asset derivatives
2015
Balance
sheet location

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic 815:
Interest rate contracts
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Other assets

Fair value

$
$

—
—

2014
Balance
sheet location

Other assets

Fair value

$
$

520
520

(Continued)
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Liability derivatives
2015
Balance
sheet
location

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic 815:
Interest rate contracts

Current maturities of
derivatives and other
long-term liabilities
Derivatives and other
long-term liabilities

Interest rate contracts
Total liability derivatives designated as hedging instruments under ASC
Topic 815

2014
Balance
sheet
location

Fair
value

$ 939
373

Fair
value

Current maturities of
derivatives and other
long-term liabilities
Derivatives and other
long-term liabilities

$1,312

$1,151
—
$1,151

The effect of derivative instruments on the statements of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Derivatives in ASC Topic 815 cash flow hedging
relationships

2015:
Effective portion
Ineffective portion
Total
2014:
Effective portion
Ineffective portion
Total

(8)

Amount of
gain or (loss)
recognized
in member’s
equity

$
$
$
$

Statement of
operations
location

(681)
—
(681)

Interest expense
Interest expense

Amount
transferred
out of AOCI
into net income

$
$

1,952
—
1,952

Interest expense
Interest expense

$
$

(1,034)
—
(1,034)
(1,132)
71
(1,061)

Fair Value Measurements
Short-term Financial Instruments
Management has determined that the carrying value of financial instruments, including trade accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, restricted cash,
trade accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of the instruments that will be settled in cash. The
fair value of restricted cash is classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair values of trade accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, trade
accounts payable and accrued expenses are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
(Continued)
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Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis:
The Company’s financial assets and (liabilities) which require fair value measurement on a recurring basis are classified within the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

Level 1

Fair Value
Level 2
Level 3

March 31, 2015
Interest rate swaps

$ —

$ 1,312

$ —

$1,312

March 31, 2014
Interest rate swaps

$ —

$

$ —

$ 631

631

Total

Derivative instruments subject to re-measurement are presented in the financial statements at fair value. The interest rate swaps are valued by
discounting the net cash flows using the forward LIBOR curve with the valuations adjusted by the Company’s credit default hedge rate.
Financial Instruments not Measured at Fair Value
The follow table presents the carrying amount, fair value and the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, but for which fair value is disclosed.
Fair Value
As reflected on
the balance sheet

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

March 31, 2015
Long-term debt, including current portion

$

50,413

$ —

$50,413

$ —

$50,413

March 31, 2014
Long-term debt, including current portion

$

56,596

$ —

$56,596

$ —

$56,596

The carrying value of the obligation outstanding under the credit facility (Note 6, Long-Term Debt and Credit Agreements) is measured at amortized
cost which approximates fair value since this obligation is fully secured and has varying interest charges based on current market rates.
(9)

Equity Capital Contribution Agreement
On November 20, 2012, the Company, and three equity investors signed a Third Amended and Restated Operating Agreement for PR Wind (PR Op
Agreement). In consideration for making capital contributions of approximately $247 million to PR Wind, the three equity investors were issued
Class A interests (Class A Units) in PR Wind, the Company’s prior membership interests in PR Wind were redeemed and canceled, and the Company
was issued Class B interests (Class B Units) in PR Wind. The PR Op Agreement established the percentages to be used as between holders of Class A
Units and Class B Units for the allocation of various elements of taxable profits and losses, deduction, credits, and cash flows.
(Continued)
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In accordance with the terms of the PR Op Agreement, the Company has used the HLBV method to determine the noncontrolling equity interest and
the net income attributable to noncontrolling interests. HLBV uses a balance sheet approach, which measures the Company’s equity in income or loss
by calculating the change in the amount of net worth the partners are legally able to claim based on a hypothetical liquidation of the entity at the
beginning of a reporting period compared to the end of that period.
In connection with the transactions giving rise to the signing of the PR Op Agreement, the Company incurred $2,472 of costs, which were recorded net
against proceeds under the equity arrangement.
At March 31, 2015, Post Rock member equity for Class A and Class B Units was $198,776 and $145,470, respectively. At March 31, 2014, Post Rock
member equity for Class A and Class B Units was $222,660 and $134,007, respectively.
Losses attributable to the noncontrolling interest for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $15,751, $8,386 and $3,319,
respectively. Cash distributions for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $8,133, $10,418 and $732, respectively.
(10) Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company has asset retirement obligations (AROs) arising from the obligation for the dismantling and removing the asset and site restoration for
the Wind Project. The obligation resulted from the Company entering into wind easement agreements with landowners that requires the Company to
return property under the agreements, subject to certain conditions specified in the agreements, to the condition prior to any activities performed by the
Company. The liability was initially measured at fair value and subsequently is adjusted for accretion expense and changes in the amount or timing of
the estimated cash flows. The corresponding asset retirement costs were capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset and
depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life. The following table presents the activity for the AROs for the years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013:

Balance at beginning of year
Accretion expense
Balance at end of year

2015

2014

2013

$1,193
99
$1,292

$1,102
91
$1,193

$1,017
85
$1,102

(11) Statement of Cash Flows
Noncash items reflected in the financial statements includes noncash investing and financing activity for the contribution of $0, $0 and $1,038 of wind
farm assets in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Interest payments for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $3,021, $3,406 and $6,329 respectively.
(Continued)
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies
(a)

Legal Proceedings
Currently, no claims have been made against the Company. The Company is not aware of any claims that may give rise to legal proceedings.

(b)

Power Purchase Agreement
The Company and Westar Energy Inc. (herein referred to as Westar) executed an agreement (herein referred to as the Post Rock PPA) for the sale
and purchase of wind-powered renewable energy from the Wind Project. The Post Rock PPA includes requirements for performance security in
the form of financial consideration or guarantees for any damages incurred by Westar in the event of a shortfall in guaranteed energy production,
as defined in the Post Rock PPA. Annual damages are capped at $5,000. The performance security must be at a level of $100.00/kW of the
nameplate capacity through the term of the Post Rock PPA. The required performance security is in place.

(c)

Operations and Support Agreement
On August 4, 2011, the Company entered into an operations and support agreement with the major turbine supplier for the turbines installed at
the Wind Project. The term of the agreement is for five years. This agreement requires payments of approximately $3.1 million per year for the
covered services, effective upon execution of this agreement.

(13) Related-Party Transactions
WCV disbursed funds on behalf of the Company in connection with ongoing operations. Disbursements made by WCV were reimbursed, typically
within a month.
Other related-party transactions and balances related to WCV, WCG, Post Rock, NTR plc, and NTR US, which are related parties, have been described
elsewhere in these notes to the consolidated financial statements.
(14) Subsequent Events
On April 1, 2015, Finco entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA) with Pattern Energy, pursuant to which Finco will sell to Pattern Energy
100% of the membership interests in the Company. On May 15, 2015, Finco consummated the PSA with Pattern Energy. In connection with the PSA,
the remaining balance of the Term Facility held by the Company was extinguished and the related interest rate swaps were settled, at closing.
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through July 10, 2015, which is the date these financial statements were available to be issued and
noted there were no other subsequent events to disclose.
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Exhibit 99.3
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements
The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements, or the pro forma financial statements, combine the historical consolidated financial statements of
Pattern Energy Group Inc. (“Pattern Energy”) and the statements of Lost Creek Wind Finco, LLC (“Lost Creek Finco”) and Lincoln County Wind Project
Holdco, LLC (“Lincoln County Holdco”), to illustrate the effect of the acquisition of such entities (the “Acquisition”) and the acquisition of the Class A
Shares of Lost Creek Finco, which will be purchased for $35 million pursuant to a purchase agreement (the “Lost Creek Tax Equity Buyout”). The pro forma
financial statements were based on, and should be read in conjunction with, the:
•

accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements;

•

consolidated financial statements of Pattern Energy for the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
the notes relating thereto, included in Pattern Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015;

•

consolidated financial statements of Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County Holdco for the year ended March 31, 2015 and the notes relating
thereto, included within Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 to this Current Report on Form 8-K/A.

The historical audited consolidated statements of operations of Lost Creek Finco and its subsidiaries and Lincoln County Holdco and its subsidiary for the
year ended March 31, 2015 have been combined with Pattern Energy’s audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 in
the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations.
The historical consolidated financial statements have been adjusted in the pro forma financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are
(1) directly attributable to the Acquisition, including the Lost Creek Tax Equity Buyout, (2) factually supportable and (3) with respect to the pro forma
statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results. The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statements of Operations, for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the three months ended March 31, 2015, give effect to the Acquisition as if it occurred on January 1, 2014. The
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet, as of March 31, 2015, gives effect to the Acquisition as if it occurred on March 31, 2015.
As described in the accompanying notes, the pro forma financial statements have been prepared using the acquisition method of accounting under U.S. GAAP
and the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The purchase price for the Acquisition is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based upon their estimated fair values as of the date of the Acquisition. The initial accounting for the Acquisition is not complete because the
evaluation necessary to assess the fair values of certain net assets acquired is still in process. The provisional amounts are subject to revision until the
evaluations are completed to the extent that additional information is obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed as of the Acquisition date.
Accordingly, the pro forma purchase price adjustments are preliminary, subject to future adjustments, and have been made solely for the purpose of providing
the pro forma financial statements presented herewith. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting may occur and
these differences could have a material impact on the accompanying pro forma financial statements and Pattern Energy’s future results of operations and
financial position.
The pro forma financial statements have been presented for informational purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of what the combined company’s
results of operations and financial position would have been had the Acquisition been completed on the dates indicated. Pattern Energy could incur
significant costs to integrate the business. The pro forma financial statements do not reflect the cost of any integration activities or benefits that may result
from synergies that may be derived from any integration activities. In addition, the pro forma financial statements do not purport to project the future results
of operations or financial position of the combined company.

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2015
Pattern
Energy

(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

Lost Creek
Finco

Lincoln County
Holdco

Pro Forma
Adjustments

$

$

$

Pro Forma
Combined

Revenue:
Electricity sales
Energy derivative settlements
Unrealized gain on energy derivative
Related party revenue
Other revenue, net
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Project expense
Depreciation and accretion
Amortization of government grant deferred income
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Related party general and administrative
Total operating expenses

$

54,984
6,169
2,972
803
(62)
64,866

8,098
—
—
—
—
8,098

25,246
29,056
—
54,302
10,564

2,187
3,131
(898)
4,420
3,678

6,221
1,808
8,029

32
—
32

35
—
35
1,560

Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Interest rate derivative settlements
Unrealized loss on derivative, net
Equity in losses in unconsolidated investments
Related party income
Net loss on transactions
Other (expense) income, net
Benefits from allocated tax attributes
Total other expense

2,535

3,646

(17,918)
(959)
(2,441)
(3,082)
668
(1,284)
(324)
—
(25,340)

(2,737)
—
—
—
—
—
1
535
(2,201)

Net (loss) income before income tax
Tax benefit
Net (loss) income
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net (loss) income attributable to controlling interest

$

(22,805)
(746)
(22,059)
(2,160)
(19,899)

1,445
—
1,445
—
1,445

Earnings per share information:
Cash dividends declared on Class A common shares
Net loss attributable to common shareholders

$

(23,624)
(43,523)

Weighted average number of shares:
Class A common stock - Basic and diluted
Earnings (loss) per share
Class A common stock:
Basic loss per share
Diluted loss per share
Cash dividends declared per Class A common share

6,399
—
—
—
—
6,399

$

1,841
2,963
—
4,804
1,595

$

(759)
—
—
—
—
(759)
—
1,962
898
2,860
(3,619)

(o)

$

29,274
37,112
—
66,386
12,218

(p)
(q)

—
—
—

6,288
1,808
8,096
—
4,122

(3,619)

(778)
—
—
—
—
—
2
—
(776)

1,184
—
—
—
—
480
—
(535)
1,129

784
—
784
(5,219)
6,003

(2,490)
—
(2,490)
—
(2,490)

$

68,722
6,169
2,972
803
(62)
78,604

(r)

$

(20,249)
(959)
(2,441)
(3,082)
668
(804)
(321)
—
(27,188)
—
(23,066)
(746)
(22,320)
(7,379)
(14,941)

$

(23,624)
(38,565)

(u)
(s)

(t)

65,892,005

65,892,005

$

(0.30)

$

(0.23)

$

(0.30)

$

(0.23)

$

0.34

$

0.34

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2014
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

Pattern Energy

Lost Creek
Finco

Lincoln County
Holdco

Pro Forma
Adjustments

$ 29,387
—
—
—
—
29,387

$

$

Pro Forma
Combined

Revenue:
Electricity sales
Energy derivative settlements
Unrealized loss on energy derivative
Related party revenue
Other revenue, net
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Project expense
Depreciation and accretion
Amortization of government grant deferred income
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Related party general and administrative
Total operating expenses

$

245,022
13,525
(3,878)
3,317
7,507
265,493
77,775
104,417
—
182,192
83,301

7,570
12,526
(3,590)
16,506
12,881

27,425
—
—
—
—
27,425
7,348
11,850
—
19,198
8,227

22,533
5,787
28,320

159
—
159

148
—
148

(3,035)
—
—
—
—
(3,035)
—
7,846
3,590
11,436
(14,471)

54,981

12,722

8,079

(14,471)

(67,694)
(4,075)
(11,668)
(25,295)
2,612
13,843
433
—
(91,844)

(13,114)
—
—
—
—
—
2
2,731
(10,381)

(3,246)
—
—
—
—
—
45
—
(3,201)

1,396
—
—
—
—
—
—
(2,731)
(1,335)

Net (loss) income before income tax
Tax provision
Net (loss) income
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net (loss) income attributable to controlling interest

$

(36,863)
3,136
(39,999)
(8,709)
(31,290)

2,341
—
2,341
—
2,341

4,878
—
4,878
(15,751)
20,629

(15,806)
—
(15,806)
—
$ (15,806)

$

(56,976)
(21,901)
(110,167)

$

$

$

298,799
13,525
(3,878)
3,317
7,507
319,270
92,693
136,639
—
229,332
89,938

(p)
(q)

—
—
—

Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Interest rate derivative settlements
Unrealized loss on derivative, net
Equity in losses in unconsolidated investments
Related party income
Net gain on transactions
Other income, net
Benefits from allocated tax attributes
Total other expense

Earnings per share information:
Cash dividends declared on Class A common shares
Deemed dividends on Class B common shares
Net loss attributable to common shareholders

(o)

22,840
5,787
28,627
—
61,311
(r)

$

(82,658)
(4,075)
(11,668)
(25,295)
2,612
13,843
480
—
(106,761)
—
(45,450)
3,136
(48,586)
(24,460)
(24,126)

$

(56,976)
(21,901)
(103,003)

(s)

(t)

Weighted average number of shares:
Class A common stock - Basic and diluted
Class B common stock - Basic and diluted
Earnings (loss) per share
Class A common stock:
Basic and diluted loss per share

$

(0.56)

$

(0.43)

Class B common stock:
Basic and diluted loss per share

$

(0.49)

$

(0.37)

Cash dividends declared per Class A common share

$

1.30

$

1.30

Deemed dividends per Class B common shares

$

1.41

$

1.41

42,361,959
15,555,000

42,361,959
15,555,000

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2015
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Trade receivables
Related party receivable
Reimbursable interconnection costs
Derivative assets, current
Current net deferred tax assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred financing costs, current, net of accumulated amortization
Total current assets
Restricted cash
Turbine advances
Construction in progress
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Unconsolidated investments
Derivative assets
Deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization
Net deferred tax assets
Other assets
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Accrued construction costs
Related party payable
Accrued interest
Dividends payable
Derivative liabilities, current
Revolving credit facility
Current portion of long-term debt, net of financing costs
Current net deferred tax liabilities
Current portion of contingent liabilities
Current portion of deferred income from government grant
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of financing costs
Derivative & other long-term liabilities, less current portion
Asset retirement obligations
Net deferred tax liabilities
Contingent liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred income from government grant, less current portion
Intangible liabilities, net of accumulated amortization
Total liabilities
Equity:
Capital
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated loss
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock at cost
Total equity before noncontrolling interest
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Pattern Energy

Lost Creek
Finco

Lincoln County
Holdco

Pro Forma
Adjustments

$

243,330
6,247
35,020
549
1,909
19,258
307
14,280
1,756
322,656
23,133
110,941
57,163
2,300,505
14,756
49,204
4,764
11,097
14,335
—
2,908,554

$

—
15,254
2,576
—
—
—
—
922
—
18,752
—
—
—
294,904
—
—
5,224
—
—
—
$ 318,880

$

$ (102,000)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(102,000)
—
—
—
(74,979)
—
—
(5,746)
—
227
97,400
$ (85,098)

25,248
11,843
1,188
1,237
23,779
16,498
—
160,422
149
4,000
—
244,364
1,280,029
25,109
28,721
23,500
761
9,460
—
—
1,611,944

$

$

$

$

691
897,220
(64,525)
(62,432)
(998)
769,956
526,654
1,296,610
$

2,908,554

1,383
—
—

$

—
6,292
—
7,462
—
—
3,590
18,727
107,324
31,704
—
—
—
—
86,745
—
244,500
93,098
—
—
(18,718)
—
74,380
—
74,380
$ 318,880

—
14,504
2,172
—
—
—
—
163
—
16,839
—
—
—
314,608
—
—
522
—
19,708
—
351,677

1,516
—
—
—
—
939
—
6,286
—
—
—
8,741
44,127
—
1,292
—
—
730
—
—
54,890
99,323
—
—
(1,312)
—
98,011
198,776
296,787

$

351,677

$

—
—
—
—
—
(2,995)
175,000
(6,033)
—
—
(3,590)
162,382
(42,866)
(17,073)
5,701
—
—
(730)
(86,745)
60,300
80,969
(192,421)
—
—
20,030
—
(172,391)
6,324
(166,067)

$ (85,098)

Pro Forma
Combined

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

$ 141,330
36,005
39,768
549
1,909
19,258
307
15,365
1,756
256,247
23,133
110,941
57,163
2,835,038
14,756
49,204
4,764
11,097
34,270
97,400
$3,494,013

$

(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(h)
(j)
(k)
(l)
(i)
(e)

(m)
(m)

(n)

28,147
11,843
1,188
1,237
23,779
20,734
175,000
168,137
149
4,000
—
434,214
1,388,614
39,740
35,714
23,500
761
9,460
—
60,300
1,992,303
691
897,220
(64,525)
(62,432)
(998)
769,956
731,754
1,501,710

$3,494,013

Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements
Note 1. Pro Forma Adjustments
(a) Represents an adjustment to reflect $67.0 million cash utilized to fund a portion of the Acquisition purchase price for the Class B Shares of Lost Creek
Finco and Lincoln County Holdco, the remainder of the purchase price was funded through the use of a $175.0 million draw on an existing Pattern Energy
revolving credit agreement, described in note (g). Additionally, represents an adjustment to reflect $35.0 million cash utilized to fund the entire acquisition
purchase price for the Lost Creek Tax Equity Buyout.
(b) Represents an adjustment to reflect property, plant and equipment at its estimated fair value, excluding the fair value of the acquired power purchase
agreements (“PPAs”), on the date of the Acquisition. The estimated fair value was determined using an income approach. The estimate is preliminary, subject
to change and could vary materially from the actual adjustment at the date of the Acquisition. The fair value adjustment to property, plant and equipment,
has resulted in an increase of approximately $7.6 million in annual depreciation expense, primarily to conform with Pattern Energy’s accounting policy
which uses a shorter depreciable life, as compared to WCG’s accounting policy. Refer to Note (p).
(c) Represents an adjustment to remove unamortized deferred financing fees of the acquired entities as the debt was revalued under acquisition accounting.
(d) Represents an adjustment to reflect the Lincoln County Holdco deferred transmission upgrade refund at its estimated fair value on the date of the
Acquisition. The estimate is preliminary, subject to change and could vary materially from the actual adjustment at the date of the Acquisition.
(e) Represents an adjustment to record the intangible asset and liability value associated with the acquired power purchase agreements (“PPAs”). The
estimated fair value was determined using an income approach. The estimated remaining terms of the PPAs range from 15 to 17 years. The fair value
adjustment to intangible assets and liabilities has resulted in an increase in annual amortization expense of approximately $3.0 million. Refer to Note (o).
(f) Represents an adjustment to remove the current portion of the financial liability representing the Class A Shares of Lost Creek Finco. Additionally,
represents an adjustment to remove the carrying value of the Lincoln County Holdco derivatives which were not assumed in the Acquisition.
(g) Represents an adjustment to reflect $175.0 million draw on an existing Pattern Energy revolving credit agreement utilized to fund a portion of the
Acquisition purchase price for the Class B Shares of Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County Holdco. Adjustments were made in the Pro Forma Statement of
Operations to reflect the estimated increase in interest expense related to these borrowings.
(h) Represents an adjustment to remove the Lincoln County Holdco project debt which was not assumed in the Acquisition. Additionally, represents the fair
value adjustment to Lost Creek Finco’s long-term debt based on preliminary estimates of fair value based on market rates for similar project-level debt.
(i) Represents an adjustment to remove the Lost Creek Finco unamortized deferred income related to 1603 Government Grant received in June, 2010. In a
business combination, the acquirer recognizes a liability related to deferred revenue only to the extent that the deferred revenue represents a legal
performance obligation assumed by the acquirer.
(j) Represents an adjustment to reflect the Lost Creek Tax Equity Buyout. Additionally, represents the adjustment to reclassify Lost Creek Finco’s asset
retirement obligation liability to be consistent with Lincoln County Holdco and Pattern Energy.
(k) Represents an adjustment to reflect asset retirement obligation liabilities at their estimated fair value on the date of the Acquisition. The estimate is
preliminary, subject to change and could vary materially from the actual adjustment at the date of the Acquisition.

Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements
(l) Represents an adjustment to remove the carrying value of the Lincoln County Holdco derivatives and accrued interest related to debt which were not
assumed in the Acquisition.
(m) Represents an adjustment to remove Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County Holdco member’s equity.
(n) Represents an adjustment to reflect Lincoln County Holdco’s noncontrolling interest at its estimated fair value on the date of the Acquisition.
(o) Represents additional amortization expense resulting from the intangible asset and liability value associated with the acquired PPAs. The remaining terms
of the PPAs range from 15 to 17 years. The estimated fair value for intangible assets and liabilities are preliminary, subject to change and could vary
materially from the actual adjustment on the date of the Acquisition.
(p) Represents the increase in accretion expense resulting from the revaluation of the asset retirement obligations and the increase in depreciation expense
resulting from the fair value adjustment to property, plant and equipment, has resulted in an increase of approximately $7.6 million in annual depreciation
expense, primarily to conform with Pattern Energy’s accounting policy which uses a shorter depreciable life, as compared to WCG’s accounting policy.
(q) Represents an adjustment to remove amortization expense of Lost Creek Finco’s deferred income related to 1603 Government Grant received in June,
2010.
(r) Represents an adjustment to remove interest expense related to Lincoln County Holdco’s project debt which was not assumed in the Acquisition.
Additionally, represents the adjustment to remove amortization expense of Lost Creek Finco’s and Lincoln County Holdco’s deferred financing fees, the
adjustment to increase interest expense related to the debt incurred to finance the Acquisition, an increase of interest expense related to purchase accounting
fair value adjustments for the Lost Creek Finco debt assumed, the adjustment to reflect losses on derivatives that were deemed not to meet the effectiveness
requirements under business combination re-assessment per ASC 815 and the adjustment to remove interest accretion expense related to the financial
liability representing the Class A Shares of Lost Creek Finco, which will be purchased for $35.0 million pursuant to a purchase agreement.
(s) Represents an adjustment to remove the tax benefits allocated to the carrying value of the financial liability representing the Class A Shares of Lost Creek
Finco, which will be purchased for $35.0 million pursuant to a purchase agreement.
(t) Pro forma Income tax provision (benefit) represents management’s assumption that pro forma net deferred tax assets would have been fully offset by a
valuation allowance and thus no pro forma adjustments to Income tax provision (benefit) would result from the Acquisition.
(u) Represents an adjustment to remove the non-recurring transaction costs directly related to the Acquisition reflected in the historical financial statements
of Pattern Energy.

Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements
Note 2. Basis of Pro Forma Presentation
The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statements of Operations, for the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the three months ended March 31, 2015, give
effect to the Acquisition as if it occurred on January 1, 2014. The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet, as of March 31, 2015, gives effect to the
Acquisition as if it occurred on March 31, 2015.
The pro forma financial statements have been derived from the historical financial statements of Pattern Energy, Lost Creek Finco and Lincoln County
Holdco that are included elsewhere in this filing. Assumptions and estimates underlying the pro forma adjustments are described in the accompanying notes,
which should be read in connection with the pro forma financial statements.
The pro forma financial statements were prepared using the acquisition method of accounting under U.S. GAAP. Acquisition accounting requires, among
other things, that most assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recognized at fair value as of the acquisition date. Because acquisition accounting is
dependent upon certain valuations and other studies that must be completed subsequent to the Acquisition date, there is not currently sufficient information
for a definitive measurement. Therefore, the pro forma financial statements are preliminary and have been prepared solely for the purpose of providing
unaudited pro forma financial information. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting will occur and these
differences could have a material impact on the accompanying pro forma financial statements and Pattern Energy’s combined future results of operations and
financial position. The Acquisition is reflected in the pro forma financial statements as being accounted for based on the accounting guidance for business
combinations. Under the acquisition method, the total estimated purchase price is calculated as described in Note 3 to the pro forma financial statements. In
accordance with accounting guidance for business combinations, the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed have been measured at fair value. The fair
value measurements use estimates based on key assumptions of the Acquisition, including prior acquisition experience, benchmarking of similar acquisitions
and historical and current market data. The pro forma adjustments included herein may be revised as additional information becomes available and as
additional analyses are performed. The final purchase price allocation will be determined after the Acquisition is completed and the final amounts recorded
for the Acquisition may differ materially from the information presented in these pro forma financial statements.
The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements do not reflect any cost savings from operating efficiencies or synergies that could result from the
Acquisition.
For the purpose of measuring the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as reflected in the pro forma financial statements, we have
applied the accounting guidance for fair value measurements, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Note 3. Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation
The allocation of the preliminary purchase price to the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed includes pro forma adjustments to reflect the fair
values of Lost Creek Finco’s and Lincoln County Holdco’s assets and liabilities, and the Lost Creek Tax Equity Buyout, at the Acquisition date. The final
allocation of the purchase price could differ materially from the preliminary allocation used for the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet primarily
because power market prices, interest rates and other valuation variables will fluctuate over time and be different at the time of completion of the Acquisition
compared to the amounts assumed in the pro forma adjustments. The following is a summary of the fair value of net assets acquired:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Preliminary
Purchase Price
Allocation

Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, prepaids and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets, net
Other assets

$

19,880
9,586
541,299
37,100
19,935

Total assets acquired

$

627,800

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Long-term debt, including current portion
Other long-term liabilities
Derivative liabilities, including current portion
Total liabilities assumed

3,539
116,301
6,993
18,867
$

Non-controlling interests
Fair value of net assets acquired

145,700
205,100

$

277,000

